House Education Committee

Minutes
2006




DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

Chairman
Barraclough

Rep. Rydalch

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 11, 2006
10:03 A.M.
Room 406

Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trall,
Bradford, Block, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon, Kemp,
Mathews, Nonini, Brackett, Boe, Mitchell, Pence

Representative Shepherd (8)

See attached Sheet

Chairman Barraclough called the meeting to order and welcomed the
members. He also welcomed the new member, Rep. Bert Brackett.
Secretary Janet Bryant and Assistant Secretary Carolyn Johnson were
introduced.

Chairman Barraclough gave a brief summary of future committee hearings.
Next week we will be taking up the rules from the State Department of
Education and the State Board of Education. Also coming up will be a
report on charter schools. The issue of a Super Majority being reduced to
60 percent the day of a primary or a general election—the Governor’'s
suggestion—will be considered. Several school districts may run a pilot
“Pay-for-Performance” program produced by a subcommittee of the State
Board.

Chairman Barraclough said the Committee needs to have a report ready
for JFAC before he makes his presentation. Rep. Trail will spear-head this
report.

In his travels around the nation, Chairman Barraclough said he hears
about the conflicts between our State Department of Education and our
State Board of Education. He said this gives Idaho a bad reputation. He
expressed the hope that Committee Members can help these two
organizations get along.

He said that relations have improved between the House and Senate
Education Committees and thanked Senator Goedde for his role in this.
He said that a Boise State University (BSU) survey showed that education
is the number one concern of the citizens of Idaho. He said that two out of
every three dollars spent from the General Fund goes to Education. There
is a problem in that citizens also want to cut state spending. Chairman
Barraclough then went around the table and allowed members to express
their concerns and items they want to see advanced during this legislative
session.

Rep. Rydalch stressed the importance of the rules the Committee will hear



Rep. Trail

Rep. Bradford

Rep. Block

Rep. Cannon

next week. She is concerned about higher education and felt that the
emphasis on K-12 has been at the expense of higher education in recent
years. She expressed concern that we are pricing college “out of parents’
checkbooks,” but said she is not in favor of higher taxes for higher
education. She disagrees with the Governor’s proposal. She would like to
see a dual enroliment system for high schoolers to take community college
courses. She would like to see community colleges take over the
professional technical/vocational education. This would allow our three
universities to concentrate on research which pays off economically in
grants for research.

Rep. Trail said he agreed on many points with Rep. Rydalch. He supports
research and the development with INL which he feels has great potential
for economic development in our state. On the Supreme Court Ruling on
school funding, he said that Mr. Huntly, an attorney in the case, had told
him that the bottom line price on the lawsuit was 35 million for bond
matching and 25 million for maintenance repair. He is in favor of
community colleges doing the technical training. He said that 20% of the
University of Idaho (U of I) staff are at the poverty level or below, and 15%
of the BSU staff. Idaho is losing some of their best scientists and teachers.
Candidates who had applied for two accounting positions at the U of |
ended up taking jobs that offered 50 to 60 thousand dollars more a year.
The new Dean of Engineering at the U of | is getting more that the
President of the U of . He felt that the Governor’s proposed 63 million for
energy and grocery credit could be better spent as scholarship awards for
math and science students.

Rep. Bradford said he believed Visual Learning Academy could be a great
deal of help to many students, but the program is not being pushed. Some
high school seniors are “goofing off” their senior year and this can get
them into trouble. If students could get college credits, it would keep them
busy and out of trouble, and might encourage them to go to college. He
said he wants to keep kids in school, and doesn’t want the proposed
graduation changes to force them out of school before graduation. He
made the additional comment that sometimes we overlook successful
teachers and programs and concentrate on the problems.

Rep. Block said she believes that education can solve the Health &
Welfare problems and the prison problems we face now. The more we can
prepare students for a successful life, the more individuals we will keep out
of Health & Welfare, and the prison system. She feels that early
intervention is important, so every child can learn to read. She said
sometimes Health & Welfare and Education are working with the same
children, but the departments don’t work together. Substance abuse is a
big issue in our schools and is having a devastating effect on our schools
and families. She urged scholarships for those high school students who
remain drug, tobacco, and alcohol free.

Rep. Cannon said that we do not have a needs-based scholarship system
in Idaho, and hopes to explore the issue. He said he feels that education
is the key to pull the state into a better financial earning position. He felt
the Governor’s proposed 63 million could perhaps be better used giving it
to the most needy to send their kids to college. He said the needs of our
Native American children are not being addressed. They are falling

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 11, 2006 - Minutes - Page 2



Rep. Nielsen

Rep. Shirley

Rep. Wills

Rep.
Chadderdon

Rep. Kemp

Rep. Mathews

Rep. Nonini

behind. He said that state-wide initiatives should not penalize local
schools with large Native American and Hispanic populations. He said he
will propose legislation to insure the funding of charter schools is fair.

Rep. Nielsen said superintendents in his district felt they should not have to
compete with other schools as a whole, but individual improvement of
students should be the measure of their yearly improvement. Some
districts have never passed a bond. Escalating property values are hurting
older people on fixed incomes who cannot afford to vote for anything that
will raise their taxes. He quoted Senator Cameron who said if things
continue as they are now, in 12 years the Health and Welfare’s budget will
be larger than K-12, and Correction’s will be larger than higher education.
Health & Welfare increases are at the expense of education. Money spent
in education adds to the economic base and helps the state far more than
money spent by Health & Welfare. We need to involve families more in the
education process and take a hard look at how proposed legislation will
affect families.

Rep. Shirley said he agreed with Rep. Rydalch. He said many states have
separate state leadership for higher education, not that he was advocating
separation at this time. He said he felt that higher education had taken a
hit in recent years. He said he supported community colleges as a good
way to start students in college who might be intimidated by a big
university. He said we have tremendous professionals out in the field and
it “behooves us” to listen to them and observe them when we look for ways
to improve.

Rep. Wills said he was concerned about research at our premier
institutions which is a great answer for the state’s economy. He said we
need community colleges and believes there would be fewer in prison if
more community colleges were available. He sees great collaboration in
his district. He said the school districts in his area are small and suffer
from state mandates without the accompanying monetary assistance. He
said he hopes that the small school districts will have the same
opportunities as the larger ones.

Rep. Chadderdon informed the Committee that a video was made of the
North Idaho College Legislative luncheon presentation showing the
positive things being done by various departments. She urged the
Committee to see this film.

Rep. Kemp said the input she has received on high school reform has
been negative. She asked that the Committee Members be provided with
the relevant documents from the Supreme Court decision.

Rep. Mathews urged committee members to review the minutes from last
year as there is a lot of good information in them. He said if we don'’t solve
our problems, history will sneak up on us and teach us a lesson. Education
is the key to good-paying jobs for Idahoans.

Rep. Nonini said he is excited about high school redesign. Manufacturers
say students coming out of high school are ill-prepared to fill jobs. White
collar jobs comprise only 20% of the job market. We need professional/
technical training in high school. Schools and districts need to consolidate

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 11, 2006 - Minutes - Page 3



Rep. Brackett

Rep. Pence

ADJOURN:

to benefit our children. He said property taxes are a real problem in his
area. He said we have thrown money at education, yet we still don’t see
the test results and scores we want. Education needs to be consumer
driven, not provider driven.

Rep. Brackett said his district has smaller schools and two one-room
schools. They are facing challenges. The idea of community colleges
interests him. He believes education is the key to many social problems.
Methamphetamine is a real problem in the Health & Welfare system and
we must get control of this issue.

Rep. Pence said there were issues “left on the table” last year. She is
concerned about the Supreme Court decision and the funding of interest
payments on school bonds. She said we have an obligation and have
made a commitment in this area. She wants to see the Super Majority
lowered. However, she said that having only two chances a year to pass
bonds, schools may have to change their strategies. She said we need a
community college system. She said that if property taxes are used to
support the community college, it gives the community local control. There
is a problem with parents who want the fine arts to continue. We need to
meet the requests of parents. She would like the money proposed by the
Governor to go to all teachers and reward the best teachers.

11:30 A.M.

Representative Jack Barraclough Janet Bryant

Chairman

Secretary

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 11, 2006 - Minutes - Page 4



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

MEMBERS:

GUESTS:

Rep. Pence

Rep. Mitchell

Rep. Boe

Rep. Shepherd

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 12, 2006
10:03 A.M.
Room 406

Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trall,
Bradford, Block, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon, Kemp,
Mathews, Nonini, Shepherd (8), Brackett, Boe, Mitchell, Pence

(See Attached Sheet)

Rep. Pence continued with her comments from yesterday. She is
concerned about the high school redesign rules on Page 66.

Rep. Mitchell said his intern commented that real life math taught in a
Professional/Technical program spurred her brother to major in math.
She was also concerned about the arts being cut. Rep. Mitchell asked if
there is the ability to phase in the new math and science rules at different
times to make it easier on the schools. He mentioned the number of
homeless children in the schools and said a child is classified as
homeless if there are more than two families living in the same home or
apartment. He commented on the number of grandparents raising their
grandchildren who have been abandoned by their parents. He said a
previous governor had a golf tournament to raise money for Idaho
students with straight A grades. He also asked where a school district
such as Orofino can go for help when they have gone to a four day school
week because of the financial situation due to the high rate of
unemployment.

Rep. Boe said she shared the same concerns as many other committee
members. She said if the population with the least education continues to
grow, by 2020 our state income level will be decreasing. This will affect
the state revenues. She said we need to be sure students, who will be
supporting “those of us who are getting older,” are well educated and can
contribute to the system. She said she hopes we can explore ideas
together and keep an open mind. She expressed concern about the
access to higher education for all students, and said Promise
Scholarships only help a few. She said our college tuition rates are lower
than Washington state, but we only have one-tenth of the scholarship
money available for those with financial needs. She is very interested in
Community Colleges, but feels there is a greater need for one in Eastern
Idaho than in the Treasure Valley.

Rep Shepherd said he is concerned about the gap in compensation for
teachers, compared with neighboring states. He said he hopes the
Committee will be aggressive in using high tech. He said he believes high
tech offers much for the smaller schools. A classroom monitor can work
with these programs and free up money for the good teachers. He
expressed concern about some of the material he has seen recently that
is required reading in colleges and feels it is too far out of contact with the



Rep. Trail

Dwight Johnson

Karen
Echeverria

Dr. Jana Jones

mainstream values. He is concerned that we need to protect our
traditional values and economic system. What students are taught will
affect how they vote. He said we should address this as a Committee.

Rep. Trail commented that he has been in contact with the financial
officers at Boise State University (BSU) and the University of Idaho (U of
). The Presidents of both institutions are concerned that we are losing
federal funds because we don't have enough scholarship money to get
the federal matching money. He will be gathering information and report
back to the committee.

Dwight Johnson, the Interim Executive Director for the State Board of
Education, introduced himself at the Chairman’s request. He grew up in
Idaho Falls and knows the Chairman and Vice Chairman well. His
parents and the Chairman are friends, and Vice Chairman Rydalch was
his high school typing teacher. He received a Bachelor's Degree in
Political Science and a Master’s Degree in Administration. He has a
secondary teaching certificate.

He introduced Karen Echeverria who will be presenting some of the rules
next week and Luci Willits who will be the liaison with the Committee and
the State Board of Education.

As to high school redesign, he said a task force was appointed last
spring. They met for six months and studied current research, national
trends, and other states’ best practices. They developed a draft and held
six public meetings, then a stakeholders’ meeting, which was long and
detailed. The Task force met again and made major modifications to the
proposed rules. The State Board met and made additional modifications,
adding to the phase-in time. Then were then adopted unanimously.

The Chairman left and Vice Chairman Rydalch assumed the Chair.

Karen Echeverria, Policy and Governmental Affairs Officer for the State
Board of Education, gave a brief overview of the rules to be considered
Monday and Tuesday.

Dr. Jana Jones, Chief Deputy Superintendent for the Department of Ed.
gave a brief overview of the rules she will introduce next week.

In response to questions, Mr. Johnson said that the members have the
final copy in their hands, and this is also out on the internet. Changes
made are shown in italics. He said on the State Board’s website there is
a matrix showing current standards, the first proposed standard, and the
final version. The matrix was sent to the members in the mail.

ADJOURN The meeting was adjourned at 11:05
Representative Jack Barraclough Representative Ann Rydalch
Chairman Vice Chairman

Janet Bryant
Secretary

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2006 - Minutes - Page 2



HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2006 - Minutes - Page 3



MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

DATE: January 16, 2006

TIME: 9:00 A.M.

PLACE: Room 406

MEMBERS: Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trail,

Bradford, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon, Kemp, Mathews,
Nonini, Shepherd (8), Brackett, Boe, Mitchell, Pence

ABSENT/ Rep. Block
EXCUSED:
GUESTS: (See Attached Sheet)

Chairman Barraclough called the meeting to order at 9:00 A.M. Our
page, Nathan Barry, was introduced. He is home schooled and studying
graphic design. He will start Boise State University (BSU) full time in the
fall.

MINUTES: Rep. Wills moved to accept the minutes of January 11 as written.
By voice vote the motion passed.
Rep. Wills moved to accept the minutes of January 12 with the
exception of changing the word Vocational Technical to
Professional/Technical. By voice vote the motion passed.

Rules from the Idaho State Board of Education and the ldaho
Department of Education:

08-0202-0501 Karen Echeverria introduced this rule which concerned Commercial
Driving schools. This new rule reflects the new version of the manual
which deletes the four rules that the Committee rejected last year. This
manual is now in compliance with the legislature.

In answer to questions, Ms. Echeverria said that the standards for
driver’s training are pretty uniform throughout the United States However,
some states have no public driver’s training classes, others have a mix of
private and public funding.

In answer to questions, Kelly Glenn, with the Department of Education,
said that in Idaho, anyone who wants to get a driver’s license before the
age of 17 must complete a class in driver’s training. Whether it is public or
a private class is up to the parents. Students do not have to take driver's
education. The State Department of Education reimburses up to $125 for
each students that completes the course, whether they pass or fail. The
additional cost, which averages about $87, is passed on to the students in
most cases, but two districts in Idaho fully support and fund the program.

Mike Arnell, a Fraud Examiner with Commercial Driving, spoke and
said he had no objection to the current rules. His only concern was if the
deleted rules were put back in. He said his group of commercial driving
schools had an agreement to meet with the Department of Education, but



MOTION:

08-0202-0502

MOTION:

08-0202-0503

MOTION:

08-0202-0505

was unable to get a hearing. They finally came up with their own rules and
submitted them, but they were ignored.

Jana Jones, Chief Deputy Superintendent of the Department of
Education, spoke up and said the Department was always willing to meet
with the public and hold discussions. She asked Mr. Arnell to contact her
office.

Questions were raised that a request for approval of a class to qualify
for certification must be received 30 days before the class. Kelly Glenn
said that all drivers’ education teachers must take continuing education
classes. If they don't participate in the Department’s classes, they can
take classes elsewhere. The 30-day ruling allows the Department to
approve the credit before classes are taken and money spent by the
teacher. (Proof of attendance is also required.)

Rep. Kemp moved to approve Rule 08-0202-0501. By voice vote
the motion passed.

Ms. Echeverria said this rule expands the alternative certification route
to include teachers who hold state certification in one area, but wish to
certify in a different area. This was always the intention of the State Board
of Education, and will benefit school districts.

Questions were raised and Allison McClintick said the current
program is ABCTE, which is computer based. A prospective teacher has
to have a bachelor's degree. They first take an assessment, then have to
pass a pedagogy test and a content area test. For those with no teaching
experience, they encourage student teaching. Ms. McClintick said 67
candidates have gone through the ABCTE. Twenty-three are teaching in
Idaho public schools now. Of the others, two have gone back into the
university setting, one is currently working as a teacher’s aid waiting for an
opening, some ended up in private schools, and one went out of state.
The Board requires a mentoring program for the first year.

As to the lack of reciprocity with some other states, Ms. Allison said the
Department is looking at rules that define how Idaho accepts teachers
through reciprocity. She said the required courses will be listed in a more
general basis.

In response to questions, she said Item 5 referred to teachers getting
an interim certificate, and Item 6 related to those already certified in the
state who were picking up additional endorsements.

Rep. Rydalch moved to accept 08-0202-0502. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Jana Jones, Chief Deputy Superintendent, said that periodically the
rules governing teacher certification are reviewed and modified to keep up
with best practices and new laws. She said teams in the content area
approved these rules.

Rep. Trail moved to accept 08-0202-0503. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Dr. Jones said these changes to teacher endorsement requirements

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 16, 2006 - Minutes - Page 2



MOTION:

were made to assure they align with the performance-based teacher
standard, among other requirements. Again teams from the content areas
reviewed and recommended these changes. After public hearings, 37
comments were received and some changes were made. The
Professional Standards Committee approved this rule.

The concern was raised concerning teachers being assigned to teach in
areas in which they were not qualified. Dr. Jones said these changes were
made to stop this. Under the No Child Left Behind Law, Social Studies is
considered a core area, so principals are sticking to the rules.

The rules are a little less specific so that content could be combined in
classes at the university level.

In response to questions, she said that the endorsement that were
dropped were ones that no one had applied for in the last three years and
were covered by other endorsements.

Rep. Cannon said he was concerned that American Studies were being
dropped as an endorsement. He said that American Indians want more of
their heritage and coursework taught.

Dr. Jones said that Native American content will first be addressed in
student standards. Then institutions of higher learning will have to look at
their course work. She was not sure that American Studies concerned
Native American content.

When asked as to the difference between American Government and
American Studies, Dr. Jones said that American Studies had more cultural
information in the content, but it is covered in other endorsement areas.

In answer to further questions, Dr. Jones said that drama and foreign
languages fall under Humanities.

Dr. Jones said that the Natural Science section has 24 semester credits
and has a number of sub categories because in small rural schools, one
science teacher may teach a number of subjects. It also helps in the
agricultural sciences. She said this rule does raise the standards.

Rep. Cannon asked if there were any Native Americans on the
Professional Standards Committee, but Dr. Jones did not know.

Rep. Mitchell said he would like to know who the people on the
Professional Standards Committee are, what is their power, how they
operate, and how often they meet.

Chairman Barraclough asked for a summary in the near future, and Dr.
Jones promised it to the committee.

Dr. Jones said she would get the information to the Committee.

Rep. Nielsen moved to accept 08-0202-0505.

Rep. Cannon said he would be voting against the rule as a protest
against the lack of Native Americans in the discussions. He said Blackfoot
is 15% Native American and they are feeling left out of the process. He
said we need to make it easier for them to be heard.

Dr. Jones said they are making great strides to include the recognized
tribes in Idaho, even though it doesn't show in these rules.

Rep. Mitchell said the tribe in his area feels left out as their identity is

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 16, 2006 - Minutes - Page 3



ACTION:

08-0202-0506

MOTION:

08-0202-0507

not recognized.

By voice vote, 08-0202-0505 passed, with Reps. Cannon and
Mitchell voting Nay.

Dr. Jones said the Professional Standards Commission is required to
review the ethics rules every year. A section was added this year with the
agreement of the Idaho Educational Association and the Professional
Standards Commission. Hearings were held, and no public comments
were received.

Dr. Jones explained some language was moved to another section so
that one section deals with student issues and one with colleague issues.
She said the “But is not limited to” is used to cover issues that might arise
that are not specifically mentioned.

The issue was raised as to how the rules apply to those feeling
pressured to join associations or not to join associations. Dr. Jones said
that would fall under harassment.

Chairman Barraclough said that teachers are harassed for not joining a
professional association and he would like more clarification.

Rep. Nielsen expressed concerns with part of the rule that reads “The
professional educator is committed to the public good and will help
preserve and promote the principles of democracy.” He said the recent
Kelo decision by the United States Supreme Court was an example of
“public good” at the expense of the good of a private individual. He also
pointed out that we are a republic. He said he would be more comfortable
if the rule said the educator was “committed to the individual good and will
help preserve the Republic with democratic rules under law.” He felt that
this would be better wording.

Rep. Nielsen said we need to start taking action as a Committee now.
It isn’t the majority rules in our country, it is the rule of law. He asked that a
rule be proposed next year to address some of these changes.

Dr. Jones said that she would take these comments back to the
Commission when they meet in a couple of weeks.

Rep. Mathews moved to accept 08-0202-0506. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Dr. Jones said the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) law requires that all
teachers in public schools have the proper certification. For Junior ROTC
instructors, completion of an Officer Armed Forces Instructor School will
qualify for certification for this position. This proposal was initiated by the
Idaho Public School Districts.

In answer to the Chairman’s question, Dr. Green said only two high
schools in Idaho have an ROTC program, Boise High and Wallace High
Schools.

Rep. Trail reported that our students went across the state line to
Washington to take part in Junior ROTC, and of these, one received a
nomination to West Point, and another to the Air Force Academy.

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 16, 2006 - Minutes - Page 4



MOTION:

08-0202-0508

Rep. Nonini, from Wallace, moved to accept 08-0202-0507. By
voice vote the motion passed.

Dr. Jones said these changes to the Special Education endorsements
were made to update and eliminate unnecessary certifications.
Endorsement areas are being eliminated because they are not being used.
They really only need a generalist special education certificate for K-12
and special endorsements for those who work with the hearing and visually
impaired. They tried to clear up misunderstandings and make the text
more clear and precise. They received 5 comments after holding hearings,
and 4 were concerned that the rule change would hurt districts. In the
past, very few have taken the courses required for these speciality
endorsements that are being eliminated, and there is no program in Idaho
in higher education that offers these extra 30 hours.

In response to questions about the qualifications for a Professional
Interpreter for those with severe hearing loss, Dr. Jones said that currently,
educational interpreters are not covered under Idaho law, but legislation is
coming this session. The Department has had guidelines for the
gualifications of interpreters and they have invested in a program to train
interpreters who can pass the national test.

She said if the law passes, temporary rules will be put in place, and
then next year the Committee will have these rules to consider.

In response to questions Dr. Jones said the School for the Deaf and
Blind does coordinate with the Department. They have an inter-agency
agreement to meet the federal requirements. It outlines actual procedures
for placement in a residential program or outreach. The outreach teachers
provide valuable support and information to the school districts with
students with visual or hearing impairments on a consultation basis. They
do not actually teach the individual students.

Dr. Jones said that the new blended certificate for birth through third
grade was done to help those who serve Idaho’s youngest children.

MOTION: Rep. Trail moved to adopt 08-0202-0508. By voice vote the motion
passed.
Rep. Nonini expressed a concern about a teacher ethics situation that
has been called to his attention. In North Idaho there is a club called “The
Gay-Straight Alliance.” The club is promoting conduct that is against the
law in Idaho. A teacher is the advisor for this club. He asked if this
situation is reflected in the ethics rules.
ADJOURN: The meeting was adjourned at 10:45 A.M.
Representative Jack Barraclough Janet Bryant
Chairman Secretary

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 16, 2006 - Minutes - Page 5



DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 17, 2006
9:00 A.M.
Room 406

Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trall,
Bradford, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon, Kemp, Mathews,
Nonini, Shepherd (8), Brackett, Boe, Mitchell, Pence

Rep. Block

(See Attachment One)

The meeting was called to order at 9:04 A.M. by Chairman
Barraclough. Rep. Boe introduced Karen McGee, and Rep. Nonini
introduced Susan Thilo, both State Board of Education members.
Senator Goedde was welcomed as well as Representatives Jaquet and
Martinez. Tom Luna was also introduced.

Wendy St. Michell, of the State Board of Education, gave a
presentation on Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Education. She said
districts are concerned and frustrated in trying to assure that LEP
students continue to make progress. She said LEP students in the state
struggle. Almost every district has LEP students, a total of 20,000
throughout the state. Over 100 languages are spoken in Idaho. There
are 80 districts with LEP students and maintaining Adequate Yearly
Progress (AYP) is difficult.

She gave an overview of a report the Limited English Proficiency Sub
Committee had prepared (see Attachment Two). The Committee made
26 recommendations, and six of these were flagged for potential policy.
Only one recommendation is being brought to the Committee this year.

She said there are two sources of funds, Title Ill under the No Child
Left Behind (NCLB) and state general funds. About 7 million dollars goes
toward the program. All the state appropriations go to the districts. The
state contributes $241 per student. Money for administration comes from
Title 11l funds ($175,000). Not all districts receive federal funds as they
need at least 100 LEP students to qualify for the program. Most of the
funds go towards salaries and professional development. Without help,
teachers are not prepared to handle LEP students. In the past, nationally,
many of the LEP students have been passed over. All teachers and
administrators have to be able to deal with LEP students.

The state receives a little over 2 million dollars for LEP. Under new
federal law, the state is required to have a statewide English language
proficiency assessment. Not all districts have tested for this in the past,
and various tests have been used, some of which have not been
adequate. The Office of Civil Rights also says that an annual English
language evaluation is required.

The new test, which will be in place by this spring, will meet all these
requirements.



Ms. St. Michell explained that the Idaho State Achievement Test
(ISAT) measures academic achievement standards, not English
proficiency. If involved in LEP classes, a student may opt out of the ISAT
test for only one year. If the student is literate in their birth language, one
year is enough. If they are not literate, one year is not enough time, and
there is some push at the federal level to extend the length of this waiver
time.

The Board entered into contract with a test vendor after considerable
research, feeling this was the best use of funds. It is a three-year contract
with two one-year optional bids. It is a similar program to the ISAT. The
total cost will be $1,798,402 for three years. The cost is necessary as the
federal government requires a comprehensive test with a full assessment
system. Students will be tracked from year to year, even if they move
within the state.

They plan to test 23,000 students this spring, including those who
have recently exited the LEP program, to assure they are proficient.

Currently they have a 3-year federal grant under Title Il funds (Teacher
Quality) of $350,000 to train teachers in LEP. This grant will end in the fall
of 2006.

One representative expressed a concern that his heavily Hispanic
district is at a disadvantage in competing with districts with less LEP
students. He said it would be better to track the progress of individual
students. Another commented that these LEP programs are vital if these
students are to be successful in life.

Ms. St. Michell said that more and more teachers, administrators, and
the Department realize these students are a large part of our economic
future. We can'tignore them. We are making progress, but there is much
more to do.

She said there is a huge parental involvement component in the
NCLB. Itis required that parents be incorporated into their child’s
education. If the state does not have the funds, they risk honcompliance
and loss of all their Title Il funds.

As to the question about schools competing unfairly, Ms. St. Michell
said that federal law requires that achievement levels be set for schools,
not individual students. The fall and spring ISAT can show improvement
for individuals during the year.

She said the standards for the LEP test will be set this summer.

Ms. St. Michell said that every class taught in the United States in
English is actually an English Language Class as there is vocabulary that
is needed. She said using the new methods, teachers are learning how
to help LEP students learn. These same methods can also help students
at risk.

In response to questions, she said that motivating students who come
from limited English families is difficult, however some districts do an
excellent job.

She said the Idaho Reading Indicator is a reading assessment. It
gives districts an assessment on their students’ reading skills, and helps
identify LEP students, who usually don’t do well on the test. There is an
option to give the test in Spanish. The score doesn’t go on the record, but
it lets the district know if the student is literate in Spanish.

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2006 - Minutes - Page 2



08-0203-0502

MOTION:

08-0203-0503

MOTION:

08-0204-0501

08-0204-0502

Rules from the State Board of Education and
the Department of Education

Karen Echeverria, of the State Board of Education said that federal law
allows the students to take the ISAT in an alternate language as long as
they are in the LEP program and not proficient in English. (The student
can only opt out of the ISAT for one year.)

Rep. Trail moved to accept 08-0203-0502. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Ms. Echeverria said that the National Assessment Governing Board
administers its test randomly around the country in various subjects.
Valuable data is gathered from these tests for the “National School Report
Card.” School districts have no problem with this rule which requires
students to participate if they are selected. The National Association of
Education Progress test is funded by the federal government, and they
contract with people to administer the test so there is no cost to the
district.

Rep. Bradford moved to accept 08-0203-0503. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Ms. Echeverria said that this rule repeals the old Charter School rules,
and that she would talk about the new section.

Last year the Legislature passed new laws regarding Charter Schools,
and these rules were written for the administration of this new law. They
received extensive written comments from Legislative Services which they
incorporated in revised rules, and then included suggestions from other
sources. Hearings were held at 7 locations October 4, 2005. She said
there could still be issues, but they have done their best.

In response to the concern that students outside of the state may be
taking advantage of our virtual schools, Ms. Echeverria said that all but
one school has been authorized by the Public School Charter School
Commission. Schools have been asked to verify the addresses of the
students taking the classes. She didn’t know what procedures each
school uses, but will question them and get a report back to the
Committee.

As to the school districts that cross state boundaries, she said existing
legislation would cover anything dealing with this area.

In response to questions, Ms. Echeverria said that the Board wanted to
ensure that non English speaking students would have the opportunity to
apply to Charter Schools, and the rules were written to reflect this. She
said that siblings were given preference in admissions in order to keep
families together. Preferences are in the following order: returning
students, siblings, students in the attendance area, and then others
outside the area.

Ms. Echeverria said that the Executive Director of the Board can grant
LEA status to a virtual school, or a public school that is referred to the
Public Charter School Commission. Other requests go to the Board.

The “Founder Rule” states that preference in enroliment in a Charter
School is given to the children of someone who makes a significant

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2006 - Minutes - Page 3



MOTION:

financial contribution to the school.

Bridget Barrus, President of the Coalition of Idaho Charter School
Families, said they had input on the rules and she has no major concerns
with them. She said there are 8,000 students in Idaho’s 24 charter
schools. Over half the schools have waiting lists. Four new schools will
open for the 06-07 school year.

Ms. Barrus said typically Charter Schools serve the demographics of
the area in which they are located. Hidden Springs has had some
controversy over the sibling rule. Originally 50% of the students did not
live in the Hidden Springs area.

The concern was raised that some charter schools do not offer
transportation which make it difficult for single parents to get their children
to school.

Ms. Barrus said that the boards of the charter schools are trying to
meet the needs and serve those from all walks of life. They do extensive
advertising, including in Spanish, to let parents know about the school.
She said if parents are desperate for a change, they will apply to the
school. She said transportation money comes one year after the
attendance. Schools have a choice—desks or transportation. They create
carpool lists and work on connecting parents. Some parents provide
lunch for those students who don’t bring one. They look for innovative
ways to meet needs.

The comment was made that last year, two virtual schools ran into
trouble meeting the needs of special education students. Chairman
Barraclough said the funding was restored to those schools.

Ms. Barrus said every charter school she knows about is meeting the
needs of their special education students.

Rep. Kemp said that a new charter school is due to open in Garden
City.

Cindy Schiller, a parent from Nampa said she had submitted written
suggestions and many had been incorporated into the rules. She said
she had a few little issues, but for this year, she thinks the rules look
good. She is glad the admission policy stayed in. She would have a
concern if siblings were not given preference. However she did not feel
the sibling preference should extend to those siblings who do not get their
application in on time.

Rep. Rydalch moved to accept the repeal of 08-0204-0501. By voice
vote the motion passed.

Brian Crook, a parent who now lives in Hidden Springs spoke in favor
of the rule changes. He said he had some concern with the admissions
model, but as applied, the rules follow the law. He said he took exception
to the reference of Hidden Springs Charter School as being wealthy. His
children were admitted when they lived outside of the Hidden Springs
Subdivision, but it was their community school. When asked, he said that
his two boys are model students and near the top of their classes. They
moved to the Hidden Springs Subdivision to get his daughter in
kindergarten next year. He said his two boys have excelled dramatically,

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2006 - Minutes - Page 4



MOTION:

08-0301-0401

MOTION:

08-0301-0501

MOTION:

08-0203-0504

and would be so far above the level of the traditional public schools, it
would cause a problem if they were moved to one. He said the
controversy has created issues in conflict with the founding principles of
the school, but the success of the school has been absolutely
monumental.

A representative asked what will happen if parents vacate the
traditional public schools and leave those schools with all of society’s
problems to solve. Chairman reminded the representative that charter
schools are public schools.

When asked what charter schools have to offer all students, Mr. Crook
said they are showing that new ideas can work. Charter schools have the
option to enforce rules and expel students who are disruptive to the
learning situation, which allows charter schools to excel. Charter schools
are held to a very high standard. They therefore have to teach to the
highest level, and this sometimes leaves the lower level students behind.
Community and family come first. He said he could barely afford his
$300,000 home in Hidden Springs, but he did it to keep his family together
in the Hidden Springs Charter School. He said kids in charter schools are
safe and are held to a higher standard of conduct than is being enforced
in the public schools.

Rep. Wills moved to accept 08-0204-0502. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Ms. Echeverria said that last year a Senate Bill created a Charter
School Commission. These are rules necessary for the Commission to
operate. There are no issues.

Rep. Rydalch moved to adopt 08-0301-0401. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Ms. Echeverria said this rule gives further clarification to the
petition/submission process to establish a charter school. Legislative
Services and others submitted suggestions which were incorporated into
the process.

In questioning, it was pointed out that there is a reference to a petition
in one place and an application package in another. She said this is the
same thing, and probably needs to be reworded. She said that the
training on required paper work and procedures is given before a charter
school starts up. All employees of a charter school must have criminal
history checks

Rep. Trail moved to adopt 08-0301-0501. By voice vote the
motion passed.

Rep. Kemp asked that the record reflect her concerns on Page 115
with the two words—petition, and application package.

Jana Jones, Deputy Superintendent of the Department of Education,
said this rule concerns the curricular adoption cycle. Currently, the State
Boards adopts on a five-year cycle. The larger states have a six-year
cycle and publishers create their new materials every six years to match

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2006 - Minutes - Page 5



these 15 largest states. If we change to this six-year cycle, we will be
adopting the most up-to-date materials. Hearings were held and no
comments were received, and there are no outstanding issues.

Comments were made by members that text books are written for the
larger states, and smaller states, such as Idaho, don’t have much input.
One member pointed out that when he objected to his son studying
certain topics in sex education classes, his son was excused from that
part.

Dr. Jones made the point that the State Board puts out a list of
approved textbooks that most closely match the state’s goals. Local
school boards pick which of those books they choose to buy. She also
pointed out that curriculum is far more than just the textbook.

MOTION: Rep. Mitchell moved to approve 08-0203-0504. By voice vote the
motion passed.
ADJOURN: Chairman Barraclough adjourned the meeting at 10:55
Representative Jack Barraclough Janet Bryant
Chairman Secretary

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2006 - Minutes - Page 6



DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

MINUTES:

08-0203-0506

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 18, 2006
8:06 A.M.
Room 406

Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trall,
Bradford, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon, Kemp, Mathews,
Nonini, Shepherd (8), Brackett, Boe, Mitchell, Pence

Rep. Block

See Attachments 1-a and 1-b
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Barraclough at 8:06 A.M.

Rep. Wills moved to accept the minutes of January 16. By voice
vote the motion passed.

Chairman Barraclough greeted the Committee by saying this rule
opens a new chapter for education in Idaho. He said the Legislature
always gets hit with the idea there won't be any funds. He pointed out
that Education gets 63% to 64% of the General Funds. He said the issue
before us today is les